

# **Response to Comments**

**Draft Remedial Investigation Work Plan for Northport Waterfront** 

Facility Site ID: 96239 Cleanup Site ID: 14874

Public comment period held:

March 13 - April 11, 2019

Summary of a public comment period and responses to comments

April 2019

### **Publication and Contact Information**

This document is available on the Washington State Department of Ecology's website at https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/gsp/CleanupSiteDocuments.aspx?csid=14874.

#### **Contacts**

Toxics Cleanup Program, Eastern Region 4601 North Monroe Street Spokane, WA 99205

Huckleberry Palmer, Site Manager 509-329-3433, <a href="mailto:huckleberry.palmer@ecy.wa.gov">huckleberry.palmer@ecy.wa.gov</a>

Erika Bronson, Public Involvement Coordinator 509-329-3546, <a href="mailto:erika.bronson@ecy.wa.gov">erika.bronson@ecy.wa.gov</a>

Washington State Department of Ecology - ecology.wa.gov

•	Eastern Regional Office, Spokane	509-329-3400
•	Headquarters, Lacey	360-407-6000
•	Northwest Regional Office, Bellevue	425-649-7000
•	Southwest Regional Office, Lacey	360-407-6300
•	Central Regional Office, Yakima	509-575-2490

### **Special accommodations**

To request materials in a format for the visually impaired, visit https://ecology.wa.gov/accessibility, call Ecology at 509-329-3546, Relay Service 711, or TTY 877-833-6341.

# **Toxics Cleanup in Washington State**

Accidental spills of dangerous materials and past business practices have contaminated land and water throughout the state. The Washington State Department of Ecology (Ecology) Toxics Cleanup Program works to remedy these situations, which range from cleaning up contamination from leaking underground storage tanks, to large, complex projects requiring engineered solutions.

Contaminated sites in Washington State are cleaned up under the Model Toxics Control Act (MTCA, <u>Chapter 173-340 Washington Administrative Code¹</u>), a citizen-mandated law passed in 1989. This law sets standards to ensure toxics cleanup protects human health and the environment and includes opportunities for public input.

# **Public Comment Period Summary**

Ecology held a comment period from March 13 through April 11, 2019, for the draft <u>Remedial Investigation Work Plan</u><sup>2</sup> for the Northport Waterfront cleanup site. Draft State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) documents completed to determine whether the investigative activities would adversely affect people or the environment were available for public comment from March 13 through March 26, 2019.

Ecology appreciates the comments we received from two people, which we address in the Response to Comments section that begins on page 2. After considering the comments, Ecology has made the draft work plan final without further changes.

### Northport Waterfront Background

Ecology is directing and funding an investigation and evaluation of cleanup options of smelter-related metals contamination on Northport's City Park and boat launch waterfront area. The site includes all permanently and seasonally exposed areas of the Columbia River bank and shore directly next to the Northport City Park and boat launch.

The Le Roi Smelter, which treated copper ores between 1901 and 1911, and lead ores between 1916 and 1921, was located just south of the Northport waterfront. Le Roi Smelter operations deposited clinker and granular slag wastes on the waterfront. The area remains polluted by smelter wastes that were dumped and dispersed along the shore. Our goal is to assess options for protecting people and restoring the environment next to the City Park.

The investigation included collecting soil samples from 25 locations along the shore and hillside leading up to the City Park and digging 16 test pits four feet deep by four feet

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=173-340

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/gsp/DocViewer.ashx?did=81002

wide and long. Direct readings of metals concentrations were also taken from approximately 300 locations using a hand-held device. Using the SEPA checklist, we determined the investigation would not have adverse impacts.

# **Response to Comments**

Robert Jackman, April 8 letter, received April 10

	4-8-19 D
	TO-HUCKleberRY PALMOR
	FROM ROBERT TECKMEN
	Subject-Comments & QUESTIONS Re-The Worth PORT
	WATER PRONT INVESTIGATION, RECEIVED
	APR 10 20 3
	Comment's & Request's:  Department of Ecology  Eastern Washington Office
1,	I Request a Public honoring En This Study So That The Public be
	Solly informed of the STATES ACTIONS & what There Fellow
	CITIZENS VIEWS ARE. RATHER THAN OUR OPINION'S being SUB-
	arted will industry & Never Being Shaped offenty with The
	Public Rather Than being Euried in Some Volumenus GOVT, REPORT.
	IN ASSISTED I REQUEST THAT The PAKADIAS / WA. STATE VS.
	Took case be included in This hearing as IT has MATERIAL
	Rete MANCE TO COLUMBIA RIVER VAILEY ENVIRONMENTAL
	PRUBlems CAUSED by The TECK Smehter Which Includes IN
	PART The PROSENT BOR SOMMENT PORTION of This STURY.
	ALThough WE ARE AWARE OF The 9th GREWITS FAVORASIC
	Ruly, we have also heard That The Matter of Air Bill Tien
	has NOT BOOM POSSING RESOLVED, SINCE WE HAVE BOOM SUBJECT TO
	direct, not secondory TRANSBOUNDARY AIR POLLUTION FROM
	Teck's Smolter we have GREAT CONCERN. Therefor WE
	REDUCET A KNOWLEDGE ABLE PRESENTATION, PREFERABLY FROM
	A ROPRESENTATIVE FROM THE ATTY GENERALS OFFICE,
	2. I REQUEST DEEP CORE SAMPLING AS PART of The MORTHPORT
	WATER FRONT BELL ESSIMONT SAMPLING, OR Added TO THE INVEST
	TIGATION Since The DRAWdown undow of Opportanty will
	PROBOBLY Be closed. (Contraved)

NORTHBAT WATER FRONT INVESTIGATION (2 controved) The REASONS ARE AS follows : a. SIAS has been deposited in The PRESENT INVESTIGATION b. Teck (Then common has long maintained That Its SIAG WAS INDAT AS ATS TOXINS WERE SPAIRED IN A GLASSIUS SILICA CONTINE. C. U.S. 6.S. CONDUTED Deep CORE SAMPLING, IN LAKE ROOSE VELT & FOUND THAT TECKS' SING WAS NOT INCRET, BUT THAT THE TOWNS had BEEN RELEASED. I Conclude That The Deeper The SING The ofder IT IS G The langer IT has been Subvected Physical MOITATIONS Possible Abrassion, OR Possibly After A CENTURY OF encapsula For 13 GONTENTS SIMPLY BROKE down The SIHIA. d. Thus IT'S POTENTIAL TOXICITY MIGHT 68 A PROBLEM FOR COMPRETIONS TO COME AT LEVELS NEAR THE SUR PACE. A POTENTIAL Toxic Time Bomb For The future. e. AT The PROSONT WE hAVE A LIVE POINTER, TOCK, IN GON-ERATIONS TO COME TELL MIGHT NOT EXIST. DEEP CORE SAMPLING KAS NOT been done NORTH OF LAKE RODSCHT ESHOULD BE done. 3. The POSSIBILITY of Submerged ToxINS IN A SUBTERINEAN Townel Beneath The Former LOROI Smolter Which has Access 13 The Columbia River. Several YEARS 160 I was informed That a Livere Twines LIES UNDER THE LEROI SMELTER SITE & IT CONTAINED ROSIDUE Thought To be ToxINS from The Smelter. This was Reported FOUND OF GRADIAN SOUDA DIVERS WHO ACCESSED THE Turned from The AVER ONE OF The divers Told my INFORCEMENT (CONT'4)

MONTHQUET WATERFRONT AN VESTERATION.

(3, CONT'M)

of Their exchannic, I attempted to Locate Said Divers

Without Success. I have no other information on this

matter, but I feel that Since this Study is being condivited on the Sinceter Site in offert should be made

To bee if this Translet exists & if so does it contains towns

Hat Could effect the River.

Peachaps State archives Researcing The Lero; modern

electrowic Gear, or Scuba Driving Could Confirm its

existance.

Thank you: Robert Jackman

Po Box 568

Northford, van 99157

T324568

### **Ecology's response**

1. Request for a public hearing: We plan to hold a community meeting later this year, or early next, to present investigation results and begin discussing options for cleanup. A draft remedial investigation report will take several months to prepare and be publicly available later this year. We did not scheduled a public meeting during this comment period because we didn't receive 10 requests and felt we would have more to share once we have preliminary results. Cleanup site managers are available to discuss the project by phone or in person at any time, and we encourage you to contact us with questions or input.

A section of our Upper Columbia River/Lake Roosevelt site web page is dedicated to the ongoing litigation between Washington and the Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation versus Teck. Please visit that site for information: https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/gsp/Sitepage.aspx?csid=12125#litigation.

Ecology agrees, as we expressed in our 2017 report, that air conditions measured in the past combined with our predictions about current conditions do warrant a new monitoring program. We requested that U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) include that in their ongoing, broader investigation, but they declined.

- 2. Request for deep core sampling: Approximately 25 pits extending to depths of 4 to 5 feet are part of the Northport Waterfront investigation. Based on sediment conditions within the waterfront, results from the test pit samples will allow us to assess contaminant conditions below the surface, which will factor into the resulting cleanup options. Ecology's investigation is separate from the broader EPA studies. The EPA continues to investigate Trail smelter slag and effluent wastes upstream and downstream of Northport. Bulk and dispersed Trail slag wastes in the upper Columbia River remain a public and environmental health concern. Ecology has emphasized and requested that EPA characterize slag deposits below the surface of the riverbed. We agree that slag-enriched sediments and deeper waste deposits are a toxicological concern deserving further investigation by EPA. Deep core sampling previously performed under the direction of the Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation showed that large deposits of slag have accumulated in the river upstream of Northport.
- 3. Concern of a subterranean tunnel into the river from the historic Le Roi smelter operations: Cleanup of the Le Roi smelter site is finished. Various historic conveyances transported wastes from the facility toward the river, including some underground. Ecology has not encountered nor are we aware of remnant tunnels or current conveyance seepage threats extending out into the river. Using available historic records and accounts, our investigation covers the shoreline area directly associated with historic riverfront discharges. We will investigate contamination in shoreline bank soils nearest to the historic discharge points.

### Clifford Ward, April 9 letter, received April 10

To whom it way snear 19/19
I am asking for a quobe metry
to docume some of the issues
at Northport having to do with
investigation and clean up.
There you?

Chifford B. WARD

### **Ecology's response**

Request for a public hearing: We plan to hold a community meeting later this year, or early next, to present investigation results and begin discussing options for cleanup. A draft remedial investigation report will take several months to prepare and be publicly available later this year. We did not scheduled a public meeting during this comment period because we didn't receive 10 requests and felt we would have more to share once we have preliminary results. Cleanup site managers are available to discuss the project by phone or in person at any time, and we encourage you to contact us with questions or input.